
Equal Opportunity Employer      TTY Dial 7-1-1 or 1-800-735-2900 

411 NE “C” Street, Willamina, Oregon 97396-2783 - Telephone: (503) 876-2242 / Fax: (503) 876-1121 

willaminaoregon.gov 

 Willamina City Council Regular Meeting 
Tuesday, October 8, 2019, 2019, 6:00 pm 

West Valley Fire Station 
825 NE Main St. 

Willamina, OR 97396 
 

AGENDA 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL  

FLAG SALUTE 

AGENDA ADDITIONS, DELETIONS, AND CORRECTIONS  

CORRESPONDENCE – None  

PRESENTATIONS – Introduction of Yamhill County Sheriff’s Deputy Schmidt 

CONSENT AGENDA   “(A listing of routine business items, which are adopted with one 
motion, without discussion. However, any COUNCILOR may request that an item be pulled 
from the Consent Agenda for discussion and separate action. The item is then not 
considered after the Consent Agenda items have been voted upon).” 

1. Check Registers – August 1 to 31, 2019 (informational) 
2. Financials August 31, 2019 (informational) 
3. Minutes from the September 10, 2019 City Council Meeting 

 

REGULAR AGENDA- None 

INFORMATIONAL REPORTS (Items that require no Council action)   

MAYORS REPORT 

COUNCIL LIAISON REPORTS 

1. Cemetery Committee Liaison (Councilor Baller) 
2. Chamber Liaison (Councilor Wooden) 
3. Library Liaison (Councilor Lawson) 
4. YCOM Board (Councilor Baller) 



Equal Opportunity Employer      TTY Dial 7-1-1 or 1-800-735-2900 

411 NE “C” Street, Willamina, Oregon 97396-2783 - Telephone: (503) 876-2242 / Fax: (503) 876-1121 

willaminaoregon.gov 

5. Yamhill County Transit Authority Board Member (Councilor Johnson) 
 
INFORMATIONAL REPORTS FROM CITY OFFICERS 

6. City Manager 
7. Sheriff’s Report 
 

EVENT CALENDAR- Informational 

 

 

 
 

 

 



CONSENT AGENDA 































































































1 
 

September 10, 2019 City Council Meeting Minutes 
 

City Of Willamina  
City Council Minutes 
September 10, 2019 

6:00 PM 
  

Location of Meeting: 
West Valley Fire District 
825 NE Main St.  
Willamina, Oregon 97396 
  
Present at Meeting:  
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Council President Rita Baller 
Councilor Theresa McKnight 
Councilor April Wooden 
Councilor Craig Johnson  
Councilor Roberta Lawson 
City Manager Kenna West 
Deputy City Recorder Debbie Bernard 
Public Works Director Jeff Brown 
City Planner Lisa Brosnan 
Guests (not limited to:) 
West Valley Fire District Chief Fred Hertel 
Yamhill County Sheriff’s Deputy Derek Trombla 
Marian Lucas 
Dennis Weeks 
Recca Maze 
Ginny Wymore 
Garry Brooks  
Patty Brooks 
Absent from Meeting: Councilor Bob Burr 
  
Mayor Ila Skyberg called the regular meeting of the City Council to order at 6:00 PM on 
September 10, 2019 at the West Valley Fire District. Deputy City Recorder Bernard 
called the roll and a quorum was present. Mayor Skyberg led in the flag salute. 
  

I. Approval of Agenda 
  
The agenda for the meeting was distributed and unanimously approved with two 
additions to the regular agenda.  
  

II. Review of Previous Minutes 
  
The minutes of the previous meeting were reviewed and unanimously approved. 
  

III. Consideration of Open Issues 



2 

September 10, 2019 City Council Meeting Minutes 

1. Agenda Additions, Deletions, And Corrections
Mayor Ila Skyberg
Mayor Skyberg announced two additions to the agenda 1) Appointment to the
Library Board added as Agenda Item No. 3 under the Regular Agenda, and 2)
Ordinance No 679, An Ordinance amending section 2.102 of the Willamina
Development Code, added as Agenda Item No. 4 under the Regular Agenda.

2. Correspondence
Mayor Ila Skyberg
Mayor Skyberg noted an email letter, requesting the renaming of the City of
Willamina Museum in memory of Charlene Brown had been received.

City Manager West , with Mayor Skyberg’s approval, asked if the Council would
like Councilor Wooden to comment on the letter, as she is also a curator of the
Willamina Museum.  The letter was read into the record by the Deputy City
Recorder. Councilor Wooden recommended the name remain the Willamina
Historical Museum, but that the research room within the Museum be renamed
The Charlene Brown Memorial Research Room. Councilor Baller seconded the
motion to rename the Museum research room The Charlene Brown Memorial
Research Room.
Mayor Skyberg announced the motion and the second and asked for further
discussion. There was none.

MOTION: Councilor Wooden moved to name the Museum research room The
Charlene Brown Memorial Research Room in honor of one of the original co-
curators of the Museum, Charlene Brown. Councilor Baller seconded the motion.
Motion carried with Councilors Baller, McKnight, Wooden, Johnson, and Lawson
all in favor.

3. Presentations
Mayor Ila Skyberg
Fire District Update by Chief Hertel

Mayor Skyberg introduced the West Valley Fire Chief Fred Hertel, who presented
the Council with a handout detailing the Sheridan, SW Polk, and West Valley Fire
Districts’ pilot regionalization of their fire and emergency medical services. He said
the reason for his presentation was to bring the City Council up to date on the
status of the three districts. The handout included maps of the service areas, which
totals 535 miles of coverage. Chief Hertel detailed the benefits of regionalization
of the three districts in the handout and discussed the benefits to the
regionalization.

Next, Mayor Skyberg presented retiring Yamhill County Sheriff’s Deputy Trombla
with an inscribed plaque to honoring his 20 years of service to the citizens of
Willamina. The Council meeting was recessed to celebrate Deputy Trombla’s



3 
 

September 10, 2019 City Council Meeting Minutes 
 

retirement with him, his family, and the citizens who had come to wish him well.  
The City Council meeting resumed at 6:30 pm. 
 
After returning, Mayor Skyberg read the National Preparedness Month’s 
Proclamation which declared that September is known as National Preparedness 
Month and encourages people and communities across Oregon to build a home 
inventory of their personal property, and make sure they are financially prepared, 
and properly insured to recover from a natural disaster.  
  

5. Consent Agenda 
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg called on Council President Baller for a motion. Councilor Baller 
moved to approve the Consent Agenda and read the items on the Consent 
Agenda:  
1. Check Registers July 1 to 31, 2019  
2. Financials July 31, 2019 
3. Minutes from the August 1, 2019 City Council Meeting.  
 
MOTION: Council President Baller moved to approve the Consent Agenda. 
Councilor McKnight seconded the motion. Motion carried with Councilors Baller, 
McKnight, Wooden, Johnson, and Lawson all in favor.  
 

7. Public Hearing - LA 2019 Amendment To The Development Code 
 
Mayor Skyberg closed the Regular session and announced it was time to open 
the Public Hearing. Mayor Skyberg introduced Lisa Brosnan with the Mid-
Willamette Valley Council of Governments that serves as the City’s contract 
planner.  
 
City Planner Brosnan read the required script in its entirety at the opening of the 
Public Hearing.  

 
City of Willamina 

City Council 
Legislative Hearing Announcement 

 
 

BACKGROUND 
 
A Legislative process is used when the City of Willamina considers 
proposed amendments to the City's Development Code. 
 
STATEMENT 
 
The Public Hearing that the City Council is about to open is 
conducted using a legislative process.  A legislative process is used 



4 
 

September 10, 2019 City Council Meeting Minutes 
 

when amendments propose a law that would apply, generally, to the 
community.   
 
The purpose of the City Council’s Public Hearing is to consider 
amendments to Willamina's Development Code. 
 
At the conclusion of the City Council Public Hearing, the City Council 
may either approve, approve with revisions, deny, or take no action 
on the proposed amendments.  If amendments are approved, the 
City Council also adopts an ordinance that provides an effective date 
for the amendments. 
 
The Public Hearing proceeds first with the staff report and the report 
is considered part of the record. After a summary of the amendments 
is presented, interested parties are given an opportunity to testify. 
 
Any party testifying before the Council must give their name and 
address for the record. 
 
The Public Hearing is open. 
 
We are now ready for the presentation of the staff report. 

 
City Planner Brosnan reviewed the staff report in its entirety.  
Planner Brosnan pointed out the details of the legislative amendment to the code, 
which included changes to reduce the lot size in the R-2 zone from 6,000 square 
feet to 5,000 square feet and reduce the interior setback from 7 feet to 5 feet.  She 
added the change to the frontage requirement of 25 feet. Planner Brosnan said the 
Council initiated the review on July 19, 2019 as stated in the attached minutes 
shown in Exhibit C. Appropriate Notices were published in the News-Register on 
August 20, 2019. Notices were sent to the State of Oregon DLCD.  Finally, a 
request for comments was sent to the City’s contract Engineer and there were no 
comments.  
 
Planner Brosnan said this is a Type IV legislative process.  
 
Planner Brosnan reviewed the findings in the proposal. She noted the proposal 
falls within the moderate density in the City’s Comprehensive Plan. This proposal 
revises the density to  six units per acre. In addition, Planner Brosnan noted that 
the proposed changes fall in line with City’s Comprehensive Plan, Goal 1 - 
Housing.  
 
Planner Brosnan concluded that based on the findings the staff and the City of 
Willamina Planning Commission recommend approval proposal.  

 



5 
 

September 10, 2019 City Council Meeting Minutes 
 

Mayor Skyberg asked if there was anyone in the audience who wished to speak in 
favor of the proposal. There was none. Mayor Skyberg asked if there was anyone 
in the audience who wished to speak against the proposal. There was none.  Mayor 
Skyberg asked if there were any questions or comments from the audience. There 
was none.  
 
She asked if there were any questions or comments from the City Council.  
Councilor Baller said she felt it was time to do something like this as buildable land 
was becoming more difficult to find. She said the necessity is becoming more 
obvious.  
 
MOTION:  Councilor McKnight moved to approve LA-19-01 and adopt the 
findings as presented by staff in the staff report. Councilor Wooden seconded the 
motion. The motion carried with Councilors Baller, McKnight, Wooden, Johnson, 
and Lawson all in favor.  
  

8. Manner of Recruiting Planning Commissioners 
Mayor Skyberg stated the question, “Shall the City Council approve Resolution  
19-20-002 directing and authorizing City staff on the advertisement locations for 
all future advertising of Planning Commission vacancies?” 
 
MOTION: Councilor Johnson moved that the City Council approve Resolution 
19-20-002 directing and authorizing City staff on the manner in which future 
Planning Commission vacancies are advertised. Council Baller seconded the 
motion. Motion carried with Councilors Baller, McKnight, Wooden, Johnson, and 
Lawson all in favor.  
 
City Manager West commented that the City is lacking two Planning 
Commissioners. She explained Staff is looking for approval for the method of 
advertising moving forward.  In this way staff would not have to return to Council 
each time the need arose to advertise for a Planning Commissioner vacancy.  
 

9. Official City Of Willamina Flower 
Mayor Skyberg stated the question, “Shall the City Council adopt one of five 
nominated flowers as the Official Flower of the City of Willamina?” 
 

10. MOTION: Councilor Wooden moved that the City Council adopt the Sweet Pea 
as the official Willamina flower. Councilor McKnight seconded the motion. Motion 
carried with Councilors Baller, McKnight, Wooden, Johnson, and Lawson all in 
favor.  
 

11. Appointment to the Library Board 
Mayor Skyberg explained the issued. She indicated that one of the most difficult 
responsibilities of a Mayor is to choose between two very skilled and well-suited 
applicants to a Committee.  Mayor Skyberg shared that she has seen Mr. 
Abrames work diligently on behalf of the Willamina Public Library for some time; 



6 
 

September 10, 2019 City Council Meeting Minutes 
 

that he is always there to help when asked and even when not asked he is at the 
Library offereing to help out. Mayor Skyberg appointed George Abrames.  
 
Mayor Skyberg then stated the questions, “Shall the City Council confirm the 
Mayor’s appointment to the Willamina Library Board?” 
 
MOTION: Councilor Baller moved to approve the Mayor’s appointment of George 
Abrames to the Willamina Library Board. Councilor McKnight seconded the 
motion. Motion carried with Councilors Baller, McKnight, Wooden, Johnson, and 
Lawson all in favor. 
  
MOTION: Councilor Baller moved to send a thank you card to Jeri St. Onge, the 
other applicant to the Library Board.  Councilor Wooden seconded the motion. 
Motion carried with Councilors Baller, McKnight, Wooden, Johnson, and Lawson 
all in favor.  
 

12. Ordinance 679 – An Ordinance Amending Section 2.202 of the Willamina 
Development Code.  
  
MOTION: Councilor Baller moved to approve Ordinance 679 to be read in full 
and then by title only. Councilor Johnson seconded the motion. Motion carried 
with Councilors Baller, McKnight, Wooden, Johnson, and Lawson all in favor.  
 

13. MOTION: Councilor Baller moved to approve Ordinance 679 as amended. 
Councilor Johnson seconded the motion. Motion carried with Councilors Baller, 
McKnight, Wooden, Johnson, and Lawson all in favor. 
 

14. Public Input 
 
Mayor Skyberg announced that it was time for public input and called those who 
signed in to speak. They were Marian Lucas, Dennis Weeks, Recca Maze, Ginny 
Wymore, Garry Brooks, and Patty Brooks. The comments addressed the event 
fee of $35.00 and asked the City Council to consider not charging the fee.  
 
MOTION: Councilor Baller moved that staff proceed with the event permit 
process and that the fees be waived while staff reviews comparable geographic 
and/or sized cities in regard to the requirements and amounts of the event permit 
fees being charged, and a fee proposal based on the cost of staff time to the City 
and the fees charged by comparable cities is provided to the City Council for its 
review. Councilor McKnight seconded the motion. Motion carried with Councilors 
Baller, McKnight, Wooden, Johnson, and Lawson all in favor. 

 
15. Mayor’s Report  

Mayor Skyberg announced she would pass to save time. 
 

16. Council Liaison Reports 



7 

September 10, 2019 City Council Meeting Minutes 

Cemetery Liaison Baller reported that the Polk County Cemetery Savers are 
working at the Willamina Pioneer Cemetery 3 days per week. They reset 
headstones and clean headstones. The work shows the care that has gone into 
all their work. Councilor Baller referenced her own family and their headstones 
were being reset. She added that we are always looking for new members to the 
Cemetery Committee. 

17. Chamber Liaison Wooden reported that the Bridge the Gap is scheduled for
September 14, 2019 from 10 am to 2 pm. In addition, the West Valley Visioning
community dinner held August 14 had 85 people in attendance. The Kiwanis
Duck Races sold 1400 rubber duck tickets. Claire is working on the Museum’s
antique fire engine’s brakes; it may be on display for Bridge the Gap.

18. Yamhill County Transit Liaison Johnson reported on New Bus Riders Brochures.
The Transit now offers regular service on Saturday from Grand Ronde to WinCo.

19. Reports from City Officers
Mayor Skyberg called on Madam City Manager. City Manager West reported on
the last two years’ accomplishments by City staff. City Manager West shared the
multitude of changes to City Hall, Library, and Museum. Also, to the many streets
that were paved which included 4th Street, D Street, 1st Street, B Street, Lamson
Street and the patching of over a dozen other streets. City Manager West
explained how all the many improvements in the city were funded mainly by
grants totaling $835,900.

MOTION: Councilor Wooden moved to adjourn. Councilor McKnight seconded 
the motion. Motion carried with Councilors Baller, McKnight, Wooden, Johnson, 
and Lawson all in favor.

The next meeting will be held at 6:00 PM on October 8, 2019 at: 
West Valley Fire District 
825 NE Main St 
Willamina, Oregon 97396 

Mayor Ila Skyberg adjourned the meeting at 8:00 PM. 

Minutes submitted by Deputy City Recorder, Debbie Bernard 
_________________________ 

Minutes approved by Mayor Ila Skyberg 
___________________________________ 



    City     UCR Description 9/1/2018 to 
9/30/2018

9/1/2019 to 
9/30/2019

Percentage 
Change

  YTD   Prior Year

WILLAMINA

Part 1

Aggravated Assault                 0 0 1 5

Arson                              0 0 2 4

Burglary-Business                  0 0 1 3

Burglary-Non-Residence             0 0 1 4

Burglary-Residence                 0 1 8 6

Larceny                            7 3 -57.14 % 46 67

Motor Vehicle Theft-Auto           1 0 3 3

Murder                             0 0 1

Rape                               0 0 2

Robbery                            0 0 1

Part 1 Total 8 4 -50.00 % 62 96

Part 2

All Other                          1 0 10 11

Animal Problems                    0 0 1

Disorderly Conduct                 0 0 8 10

Drug Laws                          4 4 26 21

DUII                               0 1 8 4

Forgery                            0 0 2 5

Fraud                              0 1 6 1

Kidnapping                         0 0 1

Liquor Laws                        0 0 2 3

Runaway                            0 0 5 4

Sex Offenses                       0 0 4 6

Simple Assault                     0 1 27 36

Stolen Property                    1 0 1

Tresspass/Prowler                  1 0 9 14

Vandalism                          3 1 -66.67 % 25 33

Total For WILLAMINA 49 23 -53.06 % 379 532

Report run date: 10/7/2019

Yamhill County Sheriff's Office
 Crime Summary for WILLAMINA

From 9/1/2019 to 9/30/2019



    City     UCR Description 9/1/2018 to 
9/30/2018

9/1/2019 to 
9/30/2019

Percentage 
Change

  YTD   Prior Year

WILLAMINA

Weapons                            0 0 2

Part 2 Total 10 8 -20.00 % 134 151

Part 3

All Other                          8 5 -37.50 % 78 101

Non-Reportable Offenses            23 6 -73.91 % 105 184

Part 3 Total 31 11 -64.52 % 183 285

Total For WILLAMINA 49 23 -53.06 % 379 532

Report run date: 10/7/2019

Yamhill County Sheriff's Office
 Crime Summary for WILLAMINA

From 9/1/2019 to 9/30/2019



   

Yearly Schedule of Events
CITY OF WILLAMNA CITY COUNCIL 

Su M Tu W Th F Sa July
1 2 3 4 5 6 07/04/19 (Thu) Independence day - CITY HALL CLOSED holiday

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 07/02/19 (Tues) Planning Commission meeting
14 15 16 17 18 19 20 07/15/19 (Tues) Deadline for filing the LB 50 meeting
21 22 23 24 25 26 27 07/16/19 (Tues) City Council Regular Meeting Note New Date meeting
28 29 30 31

Su M Tu W Th F Sa August
1 2 3 08/06/19 (Tues) Planning Commission Regular Meeting meeting

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 08/13/19 (Tues) City Council Regular Meeting meeting
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 08/27/19 (Tues) Rescheduled Planning Commission Meeting meeting
18 19 20 21 22 23 24
25 26 27 28 29 30 31

Su M Tu W Th F Sa September
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 09/02/19 (Mon) Labor Day holiday
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 09/03/19 (Tue) Planning Commission Regular Meeting meeting

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 09/10/19 (Tue) City Council Regular Meeting meeting
22 23 24 25 26 27 28
29 30

Su M Tu W Th F Sa October
1 2 3 4 5  - 

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 10/08/19 (Tue) City Council Meeting meeting
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 10/14/19 (Mon) Columbus Day holiday
20 21 22 23 24 25 26 10/24/19 (Thu) Planning Commission meeting
27 28 29 30 31 10/31/19 (Thu) Halloween holiday

November
Su M Tu W Th F Sa   meeting

1 2 11/12/19 (Tues) City Council Meeting meeting
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 11/21/19 (Thu) Planning Commission meeting

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 11/28/19 (Thu) Thanksgiving holiday
17 18 19 20 21 22 23 11/03/19 (Sun) Daylight Saving (move clocks back 1 hour) holiday
24 25 26 27 28 29 30

Su M Tu W Th F Sa
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 December
8 9 10 11 12 13 14   meeting

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 12/10/19 (Tues) City Council Meeting meeting
22 23 24 25 26 27 28 12/24/19 (Tue) Christmas Eve holiday
29 30 31 12/25/19 (Wed) Christmas Day holiday

12/26/19 (Thurs) Planning Commission - pending new time/date holiday

October 2019

July 2019

November 2019

December 2019

September 2019

August 2019

NOTE NEW DATES FOR PLANNING COMMISSION


	1. 2019.10.08.CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
	1.a.CONSENT AGENDA - Copy
	2.8-31-19 Check Register
	3. 8-31-19 Financial Statements
	3.a.REGULAR. AGENDA
	4.
	6.Crime Stats by City
	19.2019 yearly_schedule_of_events
	Schedule
	Sheet1
	Help
	©


